Lol o A

10.
11.

JOA

'/& Joint Development Authority

of Jasper, Morgan, Newton, & Walton Counties

JOINT DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF
JASPER, MORGAN, NEWTON AND WALTON COUNTIES

Regular Meeting

September 23, 2025
Ipm

Newton County Water & Sewer Authority - Scott Emmons Water Reclamation Facility at
10902 Shire Parkway, Social Circle, GA 30025.

AGENDA

Call to Order Jerry Silvio
Invocation

Pledge of Allegiance

Approval or Amendment to Agenda

Approval of Minutes
a. Regular Session Minutes from Regular Meeting on August 26, 2025 P- 2-5

Updates to Public Comment Protocol P-6

Committee Chairman Reports:
a. Park Management Committee Bob Hughes
i. Takeda Update
ii. Meta/Baymare/Morning Hornet Update
iii. Rivian
iv. Moore House P-7-8
v. Public safety consultant
vi. New Matters

b. Economic Development Committee David Thompson
i. Stanton Springs activity
ii. Activity in four Counties

c. Finance Committee
i. Financial Report p.9-20
ii. Invoices p.21-28

Services Agreement with Georgia Power P-29-38

Public Comment — limited to 20 minutes total with a maximum of 2 minutes per speaker

Executive Session - Land Acquisition and Litigation

Adjourn



JOINT DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF
JASPER, MORGAN, NEWTON AND WALTON COUNTIES

August 26, 2025
1:00 P.M.

Regular Meeting
Newton County Water & Sewer Authority - Scott Emmons Water Reclamation Facility at
10902 Shire Parkway, Social Circle, GA 30025.

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Joint Development Authority of Jasper County, Morgan
County, Newton County and Walton County (the “Authority”’) was held on August 26, 2025 1pm at the
Newton County Water & Sewer Authority - Scott Emmons Water Reclamation Facility at 10902 Shire
Parkway, Social Circle, GA 30025.

Directors Present: Guests Present:

Jerry Silvio, Newton County Andrea Gray, Attorney

Stan Edwards Newton County Shane Short

Ben Riden, Morgan County Tony Rogers

Bob Hughes, Morgan County Pat Maclom

Bruce Henry, Jasper County *other members of the public and media included
Steve Jordan, Jasper County on the sign-in sheet attached

David Thompson, Walton County
Mike Owens, Walton County (by phone)

Directors Absent:
None

1. Call to Order

Mr. Silvio called the meeting to order at 1:00 pm.
2. Invocation

Mr. Steve Jordan led the invocation.

3. Pledge of Allegiance

Mr. Stan Edwards led the pledge of allegiance.

4. Approval or Amendment to Agenda

Upon a motion made by Mr. Bruce Henry, seconded by Mr. Bob Hughes and unanimously approved by
those physically present, the Agenda was approved as presented.



5. Approval of Minutes

a. Regular Session Minutes from the Regular Meeting on July 22, 2025: On a motion duly made by
Mr. Stan Edwards seconded by Mr. Ben Riden and unanimously approved by those physically
present, the minutes were approved as presented.

b. Executive Session Minutes from the Regular Meeting on July 22, 2025: On a motion duly made by
Mr. Ben Riden, seconded by Mr. Bob Hughes and unanimously approved by those physically
present, the minutes were approved as presented.

6. Committee Chairman Reports:

a. Park Management Committee

Mr. Hughes reported the following:

Takeda — Mr. Hughes reported that Takeda made a request to Newton County to
rename Shire Parkway.

Meta/Baymare/Morning Hornet

L.

il.

iii.

1v.

v.
Vi.

1.

Plan Review Request — The plan review request was included in the
meeting packet. Mr. Hughes reported that the Park Management
Committee met with Meta twice including an onsite visit regarding its
request for approval under the Declaration of Protective Covenants for
three Rapid Deployment Structures (“RDS”). Mr. Hughes made a motion
to approve Meta’s plans for the three RDS subject to the improvements to
the facade and landscaping enhancements shown in the plans provided on
August 21, 2025. The motion was seconded by Mr. Henry. Mr. Riden
requested clarification on the payment plan. Mr. Hughes responded that
the three buildings together total approximately 400,000 sf (the size of one
typical data hall) which will trigger another $1 million PILOT payment
which would start in 2027 if the buildings are completed in 2026 as
projected. Meta anticipates receiving three COs for the buildings already
constructed on its second campus this year. In 2026, the total PILOT
payments from Meta are projected at $5 million for the first campus and $3
million for the second campus. In 2027, with the addition of the three
RDS, payments would total $9 million from both campuses. Ms. Gray
stated that Meta is significantly ahead of the outside trigger dates for
PILOTs. Mr. Silvio clarified that any future buildings would also have to
seek approval through the committee. A vote was called and the plans
were approved by all members present with the conditions stated in the
motion.

Rivian — Mr. Hughes provided an update on the status of utility infrastructure. He
also reported that Rivian announced a community event for August 14, 2025 (open
to the public) and a groundbreaking on August 16, 2025 (invite only).

Moore Property — Mr. Short reported that timbering is complete. Approximately
$71,000 was received.

Public safety consultant- Mr. Hughes reported that considerations are ongoing.

New Matters - none

b. Economic Development Committee



1. Stanton Springs Activity
Mr. Thompson stated that Mr. Hughes provided the updates in his reports.
ii. Activity in the Four Counties

Mr. Edwards reported for Newton County that Jones Petorluem withdrew its rezoning/annexation
application. He stated that the County is evaluating its stance on data centers and considering the demand
on resources in coordination with the uility providers. Mr. Short reported for Walton County that he has
submitted the Moore property for a couple of project that would fit well there. He stated that Walton
County has also been inundated by data centers led by real estate developers. Mr. Edwards stated that data
center development needs to be a statewide discussion to better allocate resources like power, water and
sewer. Mr. Short stated that these conversations are occurring as there are only a few end-users who are
meeting with the state and with Georgia Power to coordinate on viable locations across the state and this
area has been identified as a desirable location. Mr. Thompson complemented NCWSA on building a gray
water recycling facility. All reported a number of false starts for data centers for inability to secure utilities.
Mr. Hughes reported for Morgan County that there is discussion regarding a bypass and Mr. Riden added
that he does not think it is needed since truck traffic will be rerouted through the Monroe bypass which will
be completed in a few months. Mr. Rogers reported for Jasper County that there are some expansions of
existing industries and that the new RN program is full (500 applications for 25 positions).

c. Finance Committee
i. Financial Report

In Mr. Jordan provided the financial report for July and reviewed the current account balances and monthly
expenditures that were included in the meeting packet along with the July financials.

1. Invoices

1. Legal invoices:
1. Andrea P. Gray, LLC
1. General legal services - $2,180
2. SSN - $1,840
3. SSS-§1,320
4. Zoning litigation - $3,920
5. Zoning litigation - $3,660
2. Smith, Gambrell and Russell
1. Real Estate-Related Matters - $1,293
2. Zoning Litigation- $960
3. Zoning Litigation- $3,180
4. Other Litigation Matters- $1,200
5. Clean Water Act - $60
2. Thomas & Hutton - $1,760 — general consulting, not reimbursable
3. Allen Smith Consulting - $270 — Takeda Grant administration
4. 5P Land Management for maintenance of frontage road - $10,000



Mr. Thompson made a motion to approve payment of the invoices which was seconded by Mr.
Riden and unanimously approved by those physically present.

iii. Budget Amendment
Ms. Pat Malcom presented a second amendment to the June 2025 year end to get all line items updated such
that we are not reporting any that are overbudget. She updated about 8-10 items with the largest item being
the additional PILOT distributions made. Mr. Riden made a motion to approve the amendment to the
budget, Mr. Hughes seconded the motion and it was unanimously approved by those present.

7. Public Comment

Mr. Silvio stated: We value public opinion and are appreciative of those of you who took the time to attend
today. All of our meetings are open to the public. Each speaker must state their name and address. Each
speaker has 2 minutes and speakers may not yield their time to others. This is not a question and answer
session and no response from the JDA is required. We will take your comments into consideration and may
reach out to you individually to discuss them further. The total time for comments will be limited to
approximately 20 minutes.

There was one public comment.

Mrs. Joellen Artz: Mrs. Artz stated that counties used to look at Comprehensive Plans, Development of
Regional Impact studies (previously mandatory but now not), Implan, and Loci studies when looking at
economic development. She stated that she had a Loci study done by an out of state professor which shows
that there will be a $40 mill loss to the Morgan County Board of Education.

8. Executive Session

There was no executive session.

9. Adjourn

On a motion duly made by Mr. Hughes, seconded by Mr. Thompson, and unanimously approved by those
physically present, the meeting was adjourned at 1:38 pm.

Attest:

Chairman Secretary



MDA

¥ Joint Development Authority
of Jasper, Morgan, Newton, & Walton Counties

JDA Public Comment Protocol

1. Speakers must sign-up to speak using sign-up sheets that will be outside the meeting room
prior to the meeting being called to Order. The Chairman will use the sign-up sheets to
call speakers during the public comment portion of the meeting. If attendees fail to sign
up, they may not speak. *

2. Comments are limited to Agenda items only.*

3. Each speaker must state their name and address at the podium.

4. Each speaker has 2 minutes and speakers may not yield their time to others.

5. Public comments are not a question-and-answer session and no response from the JDA is
required. The JDA will take comments into consideration and may reach out to the speaker
individually to discuss them further.

6. The total time for comments will be limited to approximately 20 minutes.

7. Any speaker who uses profanity, makes personal verbal attacks, or issues physical threats

will be immediately removed from the meeting and prohibited from offering public
comment at the next regular JDA meeting.*

*Items highlighted are new. All other items have been in place since 2022.

Adopted on




ESTIMATE

Lead Foot Muiching and Grading Invoicing@L eadFootMulching.com
LLC +1 (404) 909-5227
PO Box 1314

Social Circle, GA 30025

Bill to
Shiane Short

Estimate details

Estimate no.: LMFG-1118
Estimate date: 10/21/2024

Date Product or service

Residential

Residential

Residential

Residential

Residential

Bush Hogging

Accepted date

JOB: 13924 Hwy. 278, Social Circle,

Description

Demo of House

Pole Barn

Fence

2 Car garage

Concrete Driveway

Bush Hogging as well as muiching 17 acres

Total

Accepted by

Qty

Rate Amount
$19,000.00  $19,000.00
$2,000.00 $2.000.00
$2,000.00 $2,000.00
$10,000.00  $10,000.00
$2,000.00 $2,000.00
$12,000.00  $12,000.00
$47,000.00



JOB QUOTE

DATE:  10/17/2024

Mulching &
Clearing
678-687-1220

jemmurphy86@gmail.com

CLIENT: Shane Short
ADDRESS: 13924 Hwy 278

Social Circle
STATE: GA ZIP: 30656
PHONE: 770-267-1069 EMAIL: Shane@choosewalton.com

DESCRIPTION OF WORK:

Demolition of home to include permits

removal of debris

rough and smooth grading

removal of surrounding structure

removal of driveway

mulching field areas

removal of existing fencing around homesite

$ QUOTE: S 69,500.00

10/17/2024 9, Mooty

10/17/2024

Shane Short Jim Murphy

THANE 704/

TERMS AND CONDITIONS
Payment must be received prior to beginning the project
Certified check, check to M & M Mulching and Clearing
Quote valid for 60 days
JOSHUA 1:9



Joint Dev. Auth of Jasper, Morgan, Newton & Walton Counties
Balance Sheet Prev Year Comparison

As of August 31, 2025

ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
Checking - Truist
Bk of Madison-MMA
Bk of Madison-Cap Proj-Checking
Bk of Madison-Cap Proj-MMA
Bk of Madison-JMNW Disbursment
Bank of Madison-Tax Revenue
EDGE Grant Acct
Bond Purchase Acct
Total Checking/Savings
Accounts Receivable
Accounts Receivable
Total Accounts Receivable
Total Current Assets
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Equity
Fund Balance
Net Income
Total Equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Aug 31, 25 Aug 31, 24 $ Change % Change
11,132.24 20,184.16 -9,051.92 -44.85%
7,465,873.43 7,715,414.89 -249,541.46 -3.23%
460,220.31 243,796.27 216,424.04 88.77%
1,507,091.48 1,957,093.27 -450,001.79 -22.99%
40,546.80 40,546.80 0.00 0.0%
0.61 0.61 0.00 0.0%
90.25 90.25 0.00 0.0%
1.00 1.00 0.00 0.0%
9,484,956.12 9,977,127.25 -492,171.13 -4.93%
14,132.50 0.00 14,132.50 100.0%
14,132.50 0.00 14,132.50 100.0%
9,499,088.62 9,977,127.25 -478,038.63 -4.79%
9,499,088.62 9,977,127.25 -478,038.63 -4.79%
9,441,881.21 10,001,497.92 -559,616.71 -5.6%
57,207.41 -24,370.67 81,578.08 334.74%
9,499,088.62 9,977,127.25 -478,038.63 -4.79%
9,499,088.62 9,977,127.25 -478,038.63 -4.79%
0] Page 1 of 12



Joint Dev. Auth of Jasper, Morgan, Newton & Walton Counties

Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
July 2025 through June 2026

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
Timber sales
PILOT Payments
Morning Hornet Project
Rivian Project
Total PILOT Payments
Reserves from Prior Years
Total Income
Expense
Maintenance - Continuing Costs
South - Continuing Costs
Maintenance
Utilities - South
Total South - Continuing Costs
North Rivian - Continuing Costs
Frontage Rd
Maintenance
Utilities
Reserve for future maintenance
Frontage Rd - Other
Total Frontage Rd
Total North Rivian - Continuing Costs
Total Maintenance - Continuing Costs
Bank charges
Distribution to Counties
Insurance expense
Miscellaneous expense
Owners Assoc fees
Professional
Accounting expense
Audit expense
Consulting
Grant Consulting
Engineering expense
Engineering exp
Total Engineering expense
Legal expense
Litigation expense
Total Professional
Public Relations Firm

Jul '25 - Jun 26 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget
77,870.99

0.00 5,000,000.00 -5,000,000.00 0.0%

0.00 1,500,000.00 -1,500,000.00 0.0%

0.00 6,500,000.00 -6,500,000.00 0.0%

0.00 121,870.00 -121,870.00 0.0%

77,870.99 6,621,870.00 -6,543,999.01 1.18%

0.00 25,000.00 -25,000.00 0.0%

0.00 1,200.00 -1,200.00 0.0%

0.00 26,200.00 -26,200.00 0.0%

20,000.00 120,000.00 -100,000.00 16.67%

0.00 75,000.00 -75,000.00 0.0%

0.00 200,000.00 -200,000.00 0.0%

0.00 2,500.00 -2,500.00 0.0%

20,000.00 397,500.00 -377,500.00 5.03%

20,000.00 397,500.00 -377,500.00 5.03%

20,000.00 423,700.00 -403,700.00 4.72%

0.00 20.00 -20.00 0.0%

0.00 5,500,000.00 -5,500,000.00 0.0%

0.00 12,000.00 -12,000.00 0.0%

0.00 1,000.00 -1,000.00 0.0%

0.00 150.00 -150.00 0.0%

0.00 22,000.00 -22,000.00 0.0%

0.00 9,300.00 -9,300.00 0.0%

0.00 50,000.00 -50,000.00 0.0%

270.00 8,000.00 -7,730.00 3.38%

0.00 15,000.00 -15,000.00 0.0%

0.00 15,000.00 -15,000.00 0.0%

8,800.00 100,000.00 -91,200.00 8.8%

16,113.00 500,000.00 -483,887.00 3.22%

25,183.00 704,300.00 -679,117.00 3.58%

24,000.00 10,000.00 14,000.00 240.0%

10 Page 2 of 12



Security expense
Training
Utilities
Total Expense
Net Ordinary Income
Other Income/Expense
Other Income
Interest income
Interest income - banks
Total Interest income
Total Other Income
Other Expense
Capital Outlay
Stanton Springs North
Rivian - Reimbursable Expenses
Rivian Reimbursements
Total Stanton Springs North
Memorial Garden Project
Total Capital Outlay
Total Other Expense
Net Other Income
Net Income

Jul '25 - Jun 26 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget
1,600.00 10,000.00 -8,400.00 16.0%
0.00 3,000.00 -3,000.00 0.0%
58.86 0.00 58.86 100.0%
70,841.86 6,664,170.00 -6,593,328.14 1.06%
7,029.13 -42,300.00 49,329.13 -16.62%
51,938.28 75,000.00 -23,061.72 69.25%
51,938.28 75,000.00 -23,061.72 69.25%
51,938.28 75,000.00 -23,061.72 69.25%
1,760.00 100,000.00 -98,240.00 1.76%
0.00 -100,000.00 100,000.00 0.0%
1,760.00 0.00 1,760.00 100.0%
0.00 25,000.00 -25,000.00 0.0%
1,760.00 25,000.00 -23,240.00 7.04%
1,760.00 25,000.00 -23,240.00 7.04%
50,178.28 50,000.00 178.28 100.36%
57,207.41 7,700.00 49,507.41 742.95%
11 Page 3 of 12



Joint Dev. Auth of Jasper, Morgan, Newton & Walton Counties

Profit & Loss by Class
July through August 2025

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
Timber sales
Total Income
Expense
Maintenance - Continuing Costs
North Rivian - Continuing Costs
Frontage Rd
Maintenance
Total Frontage Rd
Total North Rivian - Continuing Costs
Total Maintenance - Continuing Costs
Professional
Grant Consulting
Legal expense
Litigation expense
Total Professional
Public Relations Firm
Security expense
Utilities
Total Expense
Net Ordinary Income
Other Income/Expense
Other Income
Interest income
Interest income - banks
Total Interest income
Total Other Income
Other Expense
Capital Outlay
Stanton Springs North
Rivian - Reimbursable Expenses
Total Stanton Springs North
Total Capital Outlay
Total Other Expense
Net Other Income
Net Income

12

North South TOTAL
0.00 77,870.99 77,870.99
0.00 77,870.99 77,870.99
20,000.00 0.00 20,000.00
20,000.00 0.00 20,000.00
20,000.00 0.00 20,000.00
20,000.00 0.00 20,000.00
0.00 270.00 270.00
5,730.00 3,070.00 8,800.00
16,113.00 0.00 16,113.00
21,843.00 3,340.00 25,183.00
12,000.00 12,000.00 24,000.00
800.00 800.00 1,600.00
0.00 58.86 58.86
54,643.00 16,198.86 70,841.86
-54,643.00 61,672.13 7,029.13
25,969.15 25,969.13 51,938.28
25,969.15 25,969.13 51,938.28
25,969.15 25,969.13 51,938.28
1,760.00 0.00 1,760.00
1,760.00 0.00 1,760.00
1,760.00 0.00 1,760.00
1,760.00 0.00 1,760.00
24,209.15 25,969.13 50,178.28
-30,433.85 87,641.26 57,207.41

Page 4 of 12



Joint Dev. Auth of Jasper, Morgan, Newton & Walton Counties
North - Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual

July 2025 through June 2026

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
PILOT Payments
Rivian Project
Total PILOT Payments
Total Income
Expense
Training
Bank charges
Distribution to Counties
Insurance expense
Miscellaneous expense
Security expense
Public Relations Firm
Maintenance - Continuing Costs
North Rivian - Continuing Costs
Frontage Rd
Frontage Rd - Other
Utilities
Reserve for future maintenance
Maintenance
Total Frontage Rd
Total North Rivian - Continuing Costs
Total Maintenance - Continuing Costs
Professional
Accounting expense
Audit expense
Consulting
Grant Consulting
Engineering expense
Engineering exp
Total Engineering expense
Legal expense
Litigation expense
Total Professional
Total Expense
Net Ordinary Income

Jul '25 - Jun 26 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

0.00 1,500,000.00 -1,500,000.00 0.0%

0.00 1,500,000.00 -1,500,000.00 0.0%

0.00 1,500,000.00 -1,500,000.00 0.0%

0.00 1,500.00 -1,500.00 0.0%

0.00 10.00 -10.00 0.0%

0.00 500,000.00 -500,000.00 0.0%

0.00 6,000.00 -6,000.00 0.0%

0.00 500.00 -500.00 0.0%

800.00 5,000.00 -4,200.00 16.0%

12,000.00 10,000.00 2,000.00 120.0%

0.00 2,500.00 -2,500.00 0.0%

0.00 75,000.00 -75,000.00 0.0%

0.00 200,000.00 -200,000.00 0.0%

20,000.00 120,000.00 -100,000.00 16.67%

20,000.00 397,500.00 -377,500.00 5.03%

20,000.00 397,500.00 -377,500.00 5.03%

20,000.00 397,500.00 -377,500.00 5.03%

0.00 11,000.00 -11,000.00 0.0%

0.00 8,500.00 -8,500.00 0.0%

0.00 25,000.00 -25,000.00 0.0%

0.00 4,000.00 -4,000.00 0.0%

0.00 5,000.00 -5,000.00 0.0%

0.00 5,000.00 -5,000.00 0.0%

5,730.00 50,000.00 -44,270.00 11.46%

16,113.00 500,000.00 -483,887.00 3.22%

21,843.00 603,500.00 -581,657.00 3.62%

54,643.00 1,524,010.00 -1,469,367.00 3.59%

-54,643.00 -24,010.00 -30,633.00 227.58%
13 Page 5 of 12



Other Income/Expense
Other Income
Interest income
Interest income - banks
Total Interest income
Total Other Income
Other Expense
Capital Outlay
Memorial Garden Project
Stanton Springs North
Rivian Reimbursements
Rivian - Reimbursable Expenses
Total Stanton Springs North
Total Capital Outlay
Total Other Expense
Net Other Income
Net Income

Jul '25 - Jun 26 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget
25,969.15 37,500.00 -11,530.85 69.25%
25,969.15 37,500.00 -11,530.85 69.25%
25,969.15 37,500.00 -11,530.85 69.25%

0.00 12,500.00 -12,500.00 0.0%
0.00 -100,000.00 100,000.00 0.0%
1,760.00 100,000.00 -98,240.00 1.76%
1,760.00 0.00 1,760.00 100.0%
1,760.00 12,500.00 -10,740.00 14.08%
1,760.00 12,500.00 -10,740.00 14.08%
24,209.15 25,000.00 -790.85 96.84%
-30,433.85 990.00 -31,423.85 -3,074.13%
14 Page 6 of 12



Joint Dev. Auth of Jasper, Morgan, Newton & Walton Counties

South - Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
July 2025 through June 2026

Jul '25 - Jun 26 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget
Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
Timber sales 77,870.99
PILOT Payments
Morning Hornet Project 0.00 5,000,000.00 -5,000,000.00 0.0%
Total PILOT Payments 0.00 5,000,000.00 -5,000,000.00 0.0%
Reserves from Prior Years 0.00 121,870.00 -121,870.00 0.0%
Total Income 77,870.99 5,121,870.00 -5,043,999.01 1.52%
Expense
Maintenance - Continuing Costs
South - Continuing Costs
Maintenance 0.00 25,000.00 -25,000.00 0.0%
Utilities - South 0.00 1,200.00 -1,200.00 0.0%
Total South - Continuing Costs 0.00 26,200.00 -26,200.00 0.0%
Total Maintenance - Continuing Costs 0.00 26,200.00 -26,200.00 0.0%
Bank charges 0.00 10.00 -10.00 0.0%
Distribution to Counties 0.00 5,000,000.00 -5,000,000.00 0.0%
Insurance expense 0.00 6,000.00 -6,000.00 0.0%
Miscellaneous expense 0.00 500.00 -500.00 0.0%
Owners Assoc fees 0.00 150.00 -150.00 0.0%
Professional
Accounting expense 0.00 11,000.00 -11,000.00 0.0%
Audit expense 0.00 800.00 -800.00 0.0%
Consulting 0.00 25,000.00 -25,000.00 0.0%
Grant Consulting 270.00 4,000.00 -3,730.00 6.75%
Engineering expense
Engineering exp 0.00 10,000.00 -10,000.00 0.0%
Total Engineering expense 0.00 10,000.00 -10,000.00 0.0%
Legal expense 3,070.00 50,000.00 -46,930.00 6.14%
Total Professional 3,340.00 100,800.00 -97,460.00 3.31%
Public Relations Firm 12,000.00 0.00 12,000.00 100.0%
Security expense 800.00 5,000.00 -4,200.00 16.0%
Training 0.00 1,500.00 -1,500.00 0.0%
Utilities 58.86 0.00 58.86 100.0%
Total Expense 16,198.86 5,140,160.00 -5,123,961.14 0.32%
Net Ordinary Income 61,672.13 -18,290.00 79,962.13 -337.19%

15 Page 7 of 12



Other Income/Expense
Other Income
Interest income
Interest income - banks
Total Interest income
Total Other Income
Other Expense
Capital Outlay
Memorial Garden Project
Total Capital Outlay
Total Other Expense
Net Other Income
Net Income

Jul '25 - Jun 26 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget
25,969.13 37,500.00 -11,530.87 69.25%
25,969.13 37,500.00 -11,530.87 69.25%
25,969.13 37,500.00 -11,530.87 69.25%

0.00 12,500.00 -12,500.00 0.0%

0.00 12,500.00 -12,500.00 0.0%

0.00 12,500.00 -12,500.00 0.0%

25,969.13 25,000.00 969.13 103.88%

87,641.26 6,710.00 80,931.26 1,306.13%
16 Page 8 of 12



Joint Dev. Auth of Jasper, Morgan, Newton & Walton Counties

General Ledger
As of August 31, 2025

Type Date Num Name Memo Split Debit Credit Balance
Checking - Truist 19,821.10
Check 07/03/2025 Draft Snapping Shoals Acct 4283669 Utilities 28.07 19,793.03
Check 07/03/2025 Draft Snapping Shoals Acct 4283727 Utilities 71.97 19,721.06
Bill Pmt -Check 07/22/2025 1164 Andrea P. Gray, LLC Inv 115 Gen'l Rep Accounts Payable 1,840.00 17,881.06
Bill Pmt -Check 07/22/2025 1166 Andrea P. Gray, LLC Inv 9 Stanton Sp South Accounts Payable 480.00 17,401.06
Check 07/22/2025 1165 Andrea P. Gray, LLC Inv 116 -SPLIT- 560.00 16,841.06
Check 07/22/2025 1167 Andrea P. Gray, LLC Inv 10 South matters Legal expense 380.00 16,461.06
Check 07/22/2025 1168 Michael Cunningham Monthly security -SPLIT- 400.00 16,061.06
Check 07/22/2025 1169 Jason Allen Miles Monthly security -SPLIT- 400.00 15,661.06
Check 08/26/2025 1170 Andrea P. Gray, LLC Inv 117 Gen'l rep -SPLIT- 2,180.00 13,481.06
Check 08/26/2025 1171 Andrea P. Gray, LLC Inv 11 Stanton South matters Legal expense 1,320.00 12,161.06
Check 08/26/2025 1173 Michael Cunningham Monthly security -SPLIT- 400.00 11,761.06
Check 08/26/2025 1174 Jason Allen Miles Monthly security -SPLIT- 400.00 11,361.06
Deposit 08/26/2025 Deposit Snapping Shoals Rebate for closing acct Utilities 41.18 11,402.24
. . Inv 14374 EDGE Grant .
Check 08/26/2025 1172 Allen Smith Consulting Inc L - Grant Consulting 270.00 11,132.24
Administration
Total Checking - Truist 41.18 8,730.04 11,132.24
Bk of Madison-MMA 7,423,007.80
Deposit 07/31/2025 Deposit Bank of Madison July interest -SPLIT- 21,401.96 7,444,409.76
Deposit 08/31/2025 Deposit Bank of Madison Deposit -SPLIT- 21,463.67 7,465,873.43
Total Bk of Madison-MMA 42,865.63 0.00 7,465,873.43
Bk of Madison-Cap Proj-Checking 448,450.20
Deposit 07/02/2025 Deposit Piedmont Timber Co Timber/stumpage cut off Moore prop  Timber sales 32,177.64 480,627.84
Deposit 07/03/2025 Trnsfr  Bank of Madison Z;f]‘séeééirﬁ'”'“g funds to Cap Proj gy ¢ \adison-JMNW REBA #1 5,052.50 485,680.34
Check 07/22/2025 1588 Andrea P. Gray, LLC Inv 14 North matters Legal expense 2,740.00 482,940.34
Check 07/22/2025 1592 5P Land Management LLC Inv 1424 Maintenance 10,000.00 472,940.34
Check 07/22/2025 1593 Andrea P. Gray, LLC Inv 19 Zoning Litigation Legal expense 1,620.00 471,320.34
Deposit 07/22/2025 Deposit Piedmont Timber Co Timber/stumpage cut off Moore prop  Timber sales 28,355.99 499,676.33
Bill Pmt -Check 07/22/2025 1587 Andrea P. Gray, LLC Inv 13 Stanton Sp North Accounts Payable 2,460.00 497,216.33
Bill Pmt -Check 07/22/2025 1589 Thomas & Hutton Project Adventure 6/10/25 - 6/28/25  Accounts Payable 1,070.00 496,146.33
Bill Pmt-Check  07/22/2025 1590  Thomas & Hutton 'T”;’sﬁggly Rivian Special Inv & Matl ..\t payable 1,310.00 494,836.33
Bill Pmt -Check 07/22/2025 1591 Allen Smith Consulting Inc Inv 4351 Proj Adventure Accounts Payable 500.00 494,336.33
Deposit 07/31/2025 Deposit Bank of Madison July interest -SPLIT- 208.62 494,544.95
Check 08/26/2025 1594 Andrea P. Gray, LLC Inv 20 Zoning litigation Litigation expense 3,920.00 490,624.95
Check 08/26/2025 1595 Andrea P. Gray, LLC Inv 21 Zoning litigation Litigation expense 3,660.00 486,964.95
Check 08/26/2025 1596 Andrea P. Gray, LLC Inv 15 Stanton North matters Litigation expense 1,840.00 485,124.95
Deposit 08/26/2025 Deposit  Piedmont Timber Co g:';";er /Stumpage cut off Moore Timber sales 17,337.36 502,462.31
Check 08/26/2025 1603 5P Land Management LLC Inv 1443 Maintenance 10,000.00 492,462.31
Check 08/26/2025 1602 Thomas & Hutton Inv 282375 Project Adventure Rivian - Reimbursable Expenses 1,760.00 490,702.31
Check 08/26/2025 1597 Smith Gambrell & Russell LLP Inv 1220563 Litigation matters Litigation expense 1,200.00 489,502.31
Check 08/26/2025 1598 Smith Gambrell & Russell LLP Inv 1220564 Zoning litigation Litigation expense 3,180.00 486,322.31
Check 08/26/2025 1599 Smith Gambrell & Russell LLP Inv 1217351 US DoE Litigation expense 1,293.00 485,029.31
1 7 Page 9 of 12



Type Date Num Name Memo Split Debit Credit Balance
Check 08/26/2025 1600 Smith Gambrell & Russell LLP Inv 1217352 Zoning litigation Litigation expense 960.00 484,069.31
Check 08/26/2025 1601 Smith Gambrell & Russell LLP Inv 1220565 Clean Water Act Litigation expense 60.00 484,009.31
Check 08/26/2025 1604 Cornerstone Government Affairs, Inc. Inv JDA0725 -SPLIT- 24,000.00 460,009.31
Deposit 08/31/2025 Deposit Bank of Madison August interest -SPLIT- 211.00 460,220.31
Total Bk of Madison-Cap Proj-Checking 83,343.11 71,573.00 460,220.31
Bk of Madison-Cap Proj-MMA 1,498,438.45
Deposit 07/31/2025 Deposit Bank of Madison July interest -SPLIT- 4,320.29 1,502,758.74
Deposit 08/31/2025 Deposit Bank of Madison August interest -SPLIT- 4,332.74 1,507,091.48
Total Bk of Madison-Cap Proj-MMA 8,653.03 0.00 1,507,091.48
Bk of Madison-JMNW Disbursment 40,546.80
Total Bk of Madison-JMNW Disbursment 40,546.80
Bk of Madison-JMNW REBA #1 5,052.50
Deposit 07/03/2025 Trnsfr Bank of Madison Transfer remaining funds to Cap Proj Bk of Madison-Cap Proj-Checking 5,052.50 0.00

from REBA #1

Total Bk of Madison-JMNW REBA #1 0.00 5,052.50 0.00
Bank of Madison-Tax Revenue 0.61
Total Bank of Madison-Tax Revenue 0.61
EDGE Grant Acct 90.25
Total EDGE Grant Acct 90.25
Bond Purchase Acct 1.00
Total Bond Purchase Acct 1.00
Accounts Receivable 14,132.50
Total Accounts Receivable 14,132.50
Accounts Payable -7,660.00
Bill Pmt -Check 07/22/2025 1164 Andrea P. Gray, LLC Inv 115 Gen'l Rep Checking - Truist 1,840.00 -5,820.00
Bill Pmt -Check 07/22/2025 1166 Andrea P. Gray, LLC Inv 9 Stanton Sp South Checking - Truist 480.00 -5,340.00
Bill Pmt -Check 07/22/2025 1587 Andrea P. Gray, LLC Inv 13 Stanton Sp North Bk of Madison-Cap Proj-Checking 2,460.00 -2,880.00
Bill Pmt -Check 07/22/2025 1589 Thomas & Hutton Project Adventure 6/10/25 - 6/28/25 Bk of Madison-Cap Proj-Checking 1,070.00 -1,810.00
Bill Pmt-Check  07/22/2025 1590  Thomas & Hutton 'T”;’sﬁggly Rivian Special Inv & Matl g, ¢ \1- dison-Cap Proj-Checking 1,310.00 -500.00
Bill Pmt -Check 07/22/2025 1591 Allen Smith Consulting Inc Inv 4351 Proj Adventure Bk of Madison-Cap Proj-Checking 500.00 0.00
Total Accounts Payable 7,660.00 0.00 0.00
Fund Balance -9,441,881.21
Total Fund Balance -9,441,881.21
Timber sales 0.00
Deposit 07/02/2025 Deposit Piedmont Timber Co Timber/stumpage cut off Moore prop Bk of Madison-Cap Proj-Checking 32,177.64 -32,177.64
Deposit 07/22/2025 Deposit Piedmont Timber Co Timber/stumpage cut off Moore prop Bk of Madison-Cap Proj-Checking 28,355.99 -60,533.63
Deposit 08/26/2025 Deposit  Piedmont Timber Co g:';“;’er /Stumpage cut off Moore Bk of Madison-Cap Proj-Checking 17,337.36 77,870.99
Total Timber sales 0.00 77,870.99 -77,870.99
Maintenance - Continuing Costs 0.00
North Rivian - Continuing Costs 0.00
Frontage Rd 0.00
Maintenance 0.00
Check 07/22/2025 1592 5P Land Management LLC Inv 1424 Bk of Madison-Cap Proj-Checking 10,000.00 10,000.00
Check 08/26/2025 1603 5P Land Management LLC Inv 1443 Bk of Madison-Cap Proj-Checking 10,000.00 20,000.00
Total Maintenance 20,000.00 0.00 20,000.00
Total Frontage Rd 20,000.00 0.00 20,000.00

18

Page 10 of 12



Type Date Num Name Memo Split Debit Credit Balance
Total North Rivian - Continuing Costs 20,000.00 0.00 20,000.00
Total Maintenance - Continuing Costs 20,000.00 0.00 20,000.00
Professional 0.00
Grant Consulting 0.00
Check 08/26/2025 1172  Allen Smith Consulting Inc Inv 14374 EDGE Grant Checking - Truist 270.00 270.00
Administration

Total Grant Consulting 270.00 0.00 270.00
Legal expense 0.00
Check 07/22/2025 1165 Andrea P. Gray, LLC Inv 116 Checking - Truist 280.00 280.00

Check 07/22/2025 1165 Andrea P. Gray, LLC Inv 116 Checking - Truist 280.00 560.00

Check 07/22/2025 1167 Andrea P. Gray, LLC Inv 10 South matters Checking - Truist 380.00 940.00

Check 07/22/2025 1588 Andrea P. Gray, LLC Inv 14 North matters Bk of Madison-Cap Proj-Checking 2,740.00 3,680.00

Check 07/22/2025 1593 Andrea P. Gray, LLC Inv 19 Zoning Litigation Bk of Madison-Cap Proj-Checking 1,620.00 5,300.00

Check 08/26/2025 1170 Andrea P. Gray, LLC Inv 117 Gen'l rep Checking - Truist 1,090.00 6,390.00

Check 08/26/2025 1170 Andrea P. Gray, LLC Inv 117 Gen'l rep Checking - Truist 1,090.00 7,480.00

Check 08/26/2025 1171 Andrea P. Gray, LLC Inv 11 Stanton South matters Checking - Truist 1,320.00 8,800.00

Total Legal expense 8,800.00 0.00 8,800.00
Litigation expense 0.00
Check 08/26/2025 1594 Andrea P. Gray, LLC Inv 20 Zoning litigation Bk of Madison-Cap Proj-Checking 3,920.00 3,920.00

Check 08/26/2025 1595 Andrea P. Gray, LLC Inv 20 Zoning litigation Bk of Madison-Cap Proj-Checking 3,660.00 7,580.00

Check 08/26/2025 1596 Andrea P. Gray, LLC Inv 15 Stanton North matters Bk of Madison-Cap Proj-Checking 1,840.00 9,420.00

Check 08/26/2025 1597 Smith Gambrell & Russell LLP Inv 1220563 Litigation matters Bk of Madison-Cap Proj-Checking 1,200.00 10,620.00

Check 08/26/2025 1598 Smith Gambrell & Russell LLP Inv 1220564 Zoning litigation Bk of Madison-Cap Proj-Checking 3,180.00 13,800.00

Check 08/26/2025 1599 Smith Gambrell & Russell LLP Inv 1217351 US DoE Bk of Madison-Cap Proj-Checking 1,293.00 15,093.00

Check 08/26/2025 1600 Smith Gambrell & Russell LLP Inv 1217352 Zoning litigation Bk of Madison-Cap Proj-Checking 960.00 16,053.00

Check 08/26/2025 1601 Smith Gambrell & Russell LLP Inv 1220565 Clean Water Act Bk of Madison-Cap Proj-Checking 60.00 16,113.00

Total Litigation expense 16,113.00 0.00 16,113.00
Total Professional 25,183.00 0.00 25,183.00
Public Relations Firm 0.00
Check 08/26/2025 1604 Cornerstone Government Affairs, Inc. Inv JDA0725 Bk of Madison-Cap Proj-Checking 12,000.00 12,000.00

Check 08/26/2025 1604 Cornerstone Government Affairs, Inc. Inv JDA0725 Bk of Madison-Cap Proj-Checking 12,000.00 24,000.00

Total Public Relations Firm 24,000.00 0.00 24,000.00
Security expense 0.00
Check 07/22/2025 1168 Michael Cunningham Monthly security Checking - Truist 200.00 200.00

Check 07/22/2025 1168 Michael Cunningham Monthly security Checking - Truist 200.00 400.00

Check 07/22/2025 1169 Jason Allen Miles Monthly security Checking - Truist 200.00 600.00

Check 07/22/2025 1169 Jason Allen Miles Monthly security Checking - Truist 200.00 800.00

Check 08/26/2025 1173 Michael Cunningham Monthly security Checking - Truist 200.00 1,000.00

Check 08/26/2025 1173 Michael Cunningham Monthly security Checking - Truist 200.00 1,200.00

Check 08/26/2025 1174 Jason Allen Miles Monthly security Checking - Truist 200.00 1,400.00

Check 08/26/2025 1174 Jason Allen Miles Monthly security Checking - Truist 200.00 1,600.00

Total Security expense 1,600.00 0.00 1,600.00
Utilities 0.00
Check 07/03/2025 Draft Snapping Shoals Acct 4283669 Checking - Truist 28.07 28.07

Check 07/03/2025 Draft Snapping Shoals Acct 4283727 Checking - Truist 71.97 100.04

Deposit 08/26/2025 Deposit Snapping Shoals Rebate for closing acct Checking - Truist 41.18 58.86

Total Utilities 100.04 41.18 58.86
Interest income 0.00
Interest income - banks 0.00

19

Page 11 of 12



Type Date Num Name Memo Split Debit Credit Balance
Deposit 07/31/2025 Deposit Bank of Madison July interest Bk of Madison-MMA 10,700.98 -10,700.98
Deposit 07/31/2025 Deposit Bank of Madison July interest Bk of Madison-MMA 10,700.98 -21,401.96
Deposit 07/31/2025 Deposit Bank of Madison July interest Bk of Madison-Cap Proj-Checking 104.31 -21,506.27
Deposit 07/31/2025 Deposit Bank of Madison July interest Bk of Madison-Cap Proj-Checking 104.31 -21,610.58
Deposit 07/31/2025 Deposit Bank of Madison July interest Bk of Madison-Cap Proj-MMA 2,160.15 -23,770.73
Deposit 07/31/2025 Deposit Bank of Madison July interest Bk of Madison-Cap Proj-MMA 2,160.14 -25,930.87
Deposit 08/31/2025 Deposit Bank of Madison August interest Bk of Madison-MMA 10,731.84 -36,662.71
Deposit 08/31/2025 Deposit Bank of Madison August interest Bk of Madison-MMA 10,731.83 -47,394.54
Deposit 08/31/2025 Deposit Bank of Madison August interest Bk of Madison-Cap Proj-Checking 105.50 -47,500.04
Deposit 08/31/2025 Deposit Bank of Madison August interest Bk of Madison-Cap Proj-Checking 105.50 -47,605.54
Deposit 08/31/2025 Deposit Bank of Madison August interest Bk of Madison-Cap Proj-MMA 2,166.37 -49,771.91
Deposit 08/31/2025 Deposit Bank of Madison August interest Bk of Madison-Cap Proj-MMA 2,166.37 -51,938.28
Total Interest income - banks 0.00 51,938.28 -51,938.28
Total Interest income 0.00 51,938.28 -51,938.28
Capital Outlay 0.00
Stanton Springs North 0.00
Rivian - Reimbursable Expenses 0.00
Check 08/26/2025 1602 Thomas & Hutton Inv 282375 Project Adventure Bk of Madison-Cap Proj-Checking 1,760.00 1,760.00
Total Rivian - Reimbursable Expenses 1,760.00 0.00 1,760.00
Total Stanton Springs North 1,760.00 0.00 1,760.00
Total Capital Outlay 1,760.00 0.00 1,760.00
TOTAL 215,205.99 215,205.99 0.00

20

Page 12 of 12



JDA Legal Fees 9/23/2025

Andrea P. Gray, LLC

Matter Amount Time Period

General representation (North&South) S 2,140.00 8/20/2025-9/17/2025
Stanton Springs North Matters S 1,020.00 8/20/2025 -9/17/2025
Stanton Springs South Matters S 920.00 8/20/2025-9/17/2025
Zoning Litigation S 400.00 8/20/2025 -9/17/2025

TOTAL S 4,480.00

Total Legal Fees S 4,480.00

21



Andrea P. Grayuc

Attorney at Law

Andrea P. Gray, LLC

300 E. Church Street
Monroe, Georgia 30655

Joint Development Authority of Jasper, Morgan, Newton and Walton Counties

INVOICE

Invoice # 118
Date: 09/18/2025
Due On: 10/18/2025

00007-Joint Development Authority of Jasper, Morgan, Newton and
Walton Counties

General Legal Representation

Type

Service

Service
Service

Service

Service

Service

Service

Service

Service

Date

08/21/2025

08/25/2025

08/26/2025

08/29/2025

08/31/2025

09/02/2025

09/05/2025

09/15/2025

09/17/2025

Notes

Conference with Pat Malcom regarding budget
update; Correspondence with Kevin Forbes
regarding invoices; Assemble meeting packet and
forward to Authority; Post Agenda on website;
Forward Agenda to Mike Hopkins

Prepare for JDA meeting
Prepare for, travel and attend JDA meeting

Update website with meeting packet, minutes and
recording from August meeting; Correspondence
to JDA members regarding required training

Corresponence with Jerry Silvio regarding JDA
meeting procedures

Coordination with Ben Sheidler regarding
statement response to Walton Tribune

Conference with Jerry Silvio regarding JDA
meeting procedures and updates thereto;
Correspondence to the JDA regarding same;
Conference with Ben Riden regarding same;
Correspondence with Steve Jordan regarding
payment for ORR

Draft Minutes from August meeting; Draft Agenda;
Review GA Power Agreement; Review files re
September Authority meeting

Conference with Jerry Silvio and Shane Short
regarding preparation for JDA meeting; Draft

Pagi éof 2

Quantity
2.00

0.50
3.00

0.50

0.20

0.40

1.30

1.50

1.30

Rate Total

$200.00 $400.00

$200.00 $100.00
$200.00 $600.00

$200.00 $100.00

$200.00 $40.00

$200.00 $80.00

$200.00 $260.00

$200.00 $300.00

$200.00 $260.00



public comment protocol

Detailed Statement of Account

Current Invoice

Invoice Number Due On Amount Due

118 10/18/2025 $2,140.00

Please make all amounts payable to: Andrea P. Gray, LLC

Please pay within 30 days.

Pagi éof 2

Invoice # 118 - 09/18/2025

Quantity Subtotal 10.7
Quantity Total 10.7
Total $2,140.00

Payments Received Balance Due

$0.00 $2,140.00

Outstanding Balance $2,140.00

Total Amount Outstanding $2,140.00



Andrea P. Grayuc

Attorney at Law

Andrea P. Gray, LLC

300 E. Church Street
Monroe, Georgia 30655

Joint Development Authority of Jasper, Morgan, Newton and Walton Counties

INVOICE

Invoice # 16
Date: 09/18/2025
Due On: 10/18/2025

00243-Joint Development Authority of Jasper, Morgan, Newton and
Walton Counties

North: Stanton Springs North Matters

Type

Service

Service

Service

Service

Service

Service

Service

Service

Date

08/26/2025

08/27/2025

09/03/2025

09/04/2025

09/05/2025

09/08/2025

09/11/2025

09/17/2025

Notes

Conference with Sara Gershon regarding project
updates and plan review records

Correspondence with Kevin Forbes regarding site
inspection; Conference with John S. regarding
same

Conference with Serra Hall regarding upcoming
Rivian events; Conference with Charna Parker
regarding plan review documentation; Conference
with Sara Gershon regarding same

Conference with Serra Hall regarding upcoming
Rivian events

Prepare for and attend video conference with
JDA, State and Rivian legal teams regarding
status of project and next steps with legal
documents

Conference with Sara Gershon, Wylly Harrison
and Walton County Planning Dept regarding
record keeping for plan review process

Coordination and calls with Serra Hall and Ben
Sheidler regarding statements for groundbreaking
event and coordination with Jerry Silvio; Phone
call with Jerry Silvio regarding same; Conference
with Ben Riden regarding Rivian matters

Conference with Mike Barber regarding utility

connection; Receipt and review of
correspondence from Wylly Harrison regarding

Pagi hof 2

Quantity
0.30

0.30

0.70

0.20

0.80

0.50

1.50

0.80

Rate Total
$200.00 $60.00
$200.00 $60.00

$200.00 $140.00

$200.00 $40.00

$200.00 $160.00

$200.00 $100.00

$200.00 $300.00

$200.00 $160.00



Invoice # 16 - 09/18/2025

same; Review Georgia Power contract for
maintenance of interchange lights

Quantity Subtotal 5.1
Quantity Total 5.1
Total $1,020.00
Detailed Statement of Account
Current Invoice
Invoice Number Due On Amount Due Payments Received Balance Due
16 10/18/2025 $1,020.00 $0.00 $1,020.00
Outstanding Balance $1,020.00
Total Amount Outstanding $1,020.00

Please make all amounts payable to: Andrea P. Gray, LLC

Please pay within 30 days.

Pagi %of 2



Andrea P. Grayuc

Attorney at Law

Andrea P. Gray, LLC

300 E. Church Street
Monroe, Georgia 30655

Joint Development Authority of Jasper, Morgan, Newton and Walton Counties

INVOICE

Invoice # 12
Date: 09/18/2025
Due On: 10/18/2025

00242-Joint Development Authority of Jasper, Morgan, Newton and
Walton Counties

South: Stanton Springs South Matters

Type

Service

Service

Service

Service

Date

08/21/2025

08/22/2025

08/26/2025

09/08/2025

Notes Quantity

Receipt and review of updated package from 0.40
Meta regarding building exteriors and

landscaping; Forward same to Park Management

Committee

Prepare for, travel and attend site visit with Meta; 3.00
Conference with Bob Hughes regarding same;

Draft synopsis of site visit and forward same to

Bob Hughes; Conference with Serra Hall

regarding Meta matters;

Correspondence with Tamaron Houston 0.20
regarding JDA approval of plans

Draft Declaration review approval letter for Meta 1.00
request and coordinate with Jerry Silvio and Bob

Hughes regarding same; Forward final letter to

Tamaron Houston

Rate Total

$200.00 $80.00

$200.00 $600.00

$200.00 $40.00

$200.00 $200.00

Quantity Subtotal 4.6
Quantity Total 4.6
Total $920.00

Pagi éof 2



Invoice # 12 - 09/18/2025

Detailed Statement of Account

Current Invoice

Invoice Number Due On Amount Due Payments Received Balance Due
12 10/18/2025 $920.00 $0.00 $920.00
Outstanding Balance $920.00
Total Amount Outstanding $920.00

Please make all amounts payable to: Andrea P. Gray, LLC

Please pay within 30 days.

Pagi %of 2



INVOICE
5P Land Management, LLC fiveplandmanagement@gmail.com
2225 |ke Stone Rd +1(770) 601-5445

Monroe, GA 30656

Bill to

Andrea P Gray
Andrea P. Gray, LLC
300 E. Church Street
Monroe, GA 30655

Invoice details

Invoice no.: 1461

Terms: Net 30

Invoice date: 09/15/2025
Due date: 10/15/2025

Date Product or service Description

Commercial Maintenance

Ways to pay

BANK

Cash and check are preferred. Debit and credit cards are welcome-
-customer will be charged a 3.5% processing fee. Please contact 5P

Land Management, LLC if you have difficulty with your payment
method.

Venmo: @gentry-peters

Note to customer

Thank you for your business. We look forward to serving you in the
future!

View and pay

28

Social Circle Road Frontage - Monthly
Maintenance

Total

Qty

Rate Amount

$10,000.00 $10,000.00

$10,000.00


mailto:fiveplandmanagement@gmail.com
tel:7706015445
https://connect.intuit.com/portal/app/CommerceNetwork/view/scs-v1-13f87136c9744339816e7221a3f8a63cabeca8f828e142f88f40f0663d30f385f0fa3e483e6146709e23b7d3d7cdb8a4?locale=en_US&cta=pdfbutton

A

Georgia
Power

Outdoor Lighting Systems:

Services Agreement for Total Maintenance and Repair

Lighting & Smart Services Bin 78110
241 Ralph McGill Bivd. NE

Atlanta, GA 30308

(404) 506-6117

September 8, 2025

Select Newton
Serra P. Hall
Executive Director, NCIDA

Re: Miscellaneous Lighting Services Total Maintenance & Repair Project (L-TMR)

Georgia Power Company is pleased to provide you with this offer letter and the attached terms
and conditions to provide the following Total Maintenance and Repair Services for Outdoor
Lighting Systems (as defined in the terms and conditions) at I-20 @ CR 249 Old Mili Road, in
Walton, Morgan and Newton Counties

Narrative: Maintain Customer Owned Lighting and Service

Detailed Scope of the Services:

Maintain the lighting system installed at 1-20 @ CR 249/ OLD MILL ROAD, roadway
lighting per GDOT P.I. No. 0018361.

s 49 poles and 51 - 106watt LED lights
The total annual fee is $12,240.00, plus any applicable taxes. This fee will be billed in

monthly increments. Additional fees may apply - see attached terms and conditions
for details.

L-TMR Agreement [ver. 1 - 05/2022})
Page 1

29



This pricing is valid for sixty (60) days or until earlier revoked by Georgia
Power Company, and it is made in accordance with and subject to the terms
and conditions attached hereto.

This offer is based on an initial term of two (2) years, which will renew automatically for
consecutive two (2) year terms unless and until a party terminates the Services in
accordance with Section _16_ of the attached terms and conditions.

If you wish to accept this offer and the terms and conditions, please indicate your
acceptance by signing the attached terms and conditions and returning to me for
Georgia Power Company countersignature. Such terms and conditions are
expressly incorporated by reference into this letter and shall be binding on the
parties upon the signature of both Georgia Power Company and you.

Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, this offer is subject to and is pending
upon final approval by Georgia Power Company management.

Thank you again for allowing us the opportunity to serve you. We are very eager to meet your
QOutdoor Lighting Systems needs and look forward to hearing from you soon.

Sincerely,

Gene Edwrards

Lighting & Smart Services - Georgia Power Company
Phone — 404-535-0374 - Email — rgedward @southernco.com

L-TMR Agreement {ver. 1 - 05/2022)
Page 2

30



Terms and Conditions:
Services Agreement for Total Maintenance and Repair

This Services Agreement for Total Maintenance and Repair (the “Agreement”) states the terms
and conditions upon which Georgia Power Company {(“GPC"} will perform certain lighting maintenance
and repair services to the “Customer” referenced on Page 9 and is effective as of the date on which this
Agreement is fully executed by both Parties as indicated on the signature page (the “Effective Date”).
Customer and GPC are referenced herein collectively as “Parties”, and each individually as a “Party”.

BACKGROUND

e Customer operates an Qutdoor Lighting System (as defined in Section 1) on certain areas within
Customer’'s jurisdictional limits and Customer's property, streets and/or roadways; and

e Customer desires that GPC provide the materials and services necessary for routine maintenance
of, and certain repairs to, the Outdoor Lighting System; and

e GPC desires to assist Customer and is willing to perform such maintenance and repair work for
the Outdoor Lighting System.

IN CONSIDERATION OF THE MUTUAL PROMISES DESCRIBED HERE, THE ADEQUACY AND SUFFICIENCY
OF WHICH EACH PARTY ACKNOWLEDGES, THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS:

AGREEMENT

ROUTINE MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR WORK

1. Scope of Services. Provided that the Customer is in compliance with this Agreement (including, without
limitation, is not late in paying the applicable fees), GPC will perform Routine Maintenance and Repair
Work for the Customer's Outdoor Lighting System (the “Services”).

(a) The “Qutdoor Lighting System" is the customer owned or controlled outdoor lighting facilities as
identified in Exhibit 1 (such Exhibit is attached and incorporated by this reference into this Agreement)
and located at the premises identified in Exhibit 1 (“Premises”).

(b} "Routine Maintenance” means periodic inspection of the Outdoor Lighting System, and repair or
replacement of fixtures, poles, and conductors, as needed due to ordinary wear and tear.

(c) "Repair Work" means repair or replacement, as determined by GPC in its sole but reasonable
discretion and after consultation with Customer, due to physical damage to the Qutdoor Lighting System
resulting from the action of a third party, including vehicle crashes, or other event not in the control of
the Customer. Notwithstanding the foregoing sentence, Repair Work does not include repair or
replacement caused by Acts of God. “Acts of God” means acts of civil or military authority, priorities, fires,
strikes, floods, epidemics, war, riot, delays in transportation or car shortages. The Repair Work will be
performed as expeditiously as possible after Customer’s written request {e-mail is acceptable) is received

L-TMR Agreement {ver, 1 —05/2022]
Page 3

31



by GPC’s representative listed on Exhibit 1. Such natification shall reasonably describe the Repair Work
requested.

(d) Customer may request Services for repairs or replacement due to Acts of God; provided, however,
Customer shall (i) reimburse GPC for its costs of materials, supplies, and labor (“Reimbursable Expenses”),
and (ii) pay an additional fee, which will be calculated as twenty-five percent (25%) of the Reimbursable
Expenses. Before proceeding with the repair or replacement, GPC will provide Customer with an estimate
of the Reimbursable Expenses and, upon written approval from Customer, GPC will perform the Services.

2. Premises. Customer grants a license and right of access to GPC, and its contractors and representatives,
to enter the Premises and perform the Services. Customer represents that the individual signing this
Agreement on its behalf has the authority to do so and that it has express authority from all the Premises
owners (and any other party with rights in the Premises} to enter into this Agreement and to authorize
the performance of Services. Customer is solely responsible for the safety of the Premises and agrees
that GPC has no obligation to ensure the safety of the Premises.

3. Payment for Services. GPC will invoice Customer for Services provided hereunder. The fees for the
Routine Maintenance and Repair Work are included on Exhibit 1 and are based upon a certain number of
lights. Within thirty (30) days from the date of an invoice from GPC, Customer shall pay GPC in full. If
customer desires to increase the number of lights, then the fee may be increased at the discretion of GPC
and a new Exhibit 1 shall be implemented and incorporated into this Agreement. Notwithstanding
anything in this Agreement to the contrary, GPC may increase the fees for Services effective upon the
beginning of any Renewal Term and upon at least sixty (60) days’ prior written notice {(e-mail is acceptable)
prior to the beginning of such Renewal Term to Customer’s representative listed in Exhibit 1.

4. Additional Costs. The Customer assumes full responsibility for and costs associated with, the
following activities if required for GPC to perform Services: (a} the location of underground utilities at the
site of the Services; (b) any relocation or removal of underground (including but not limited to rock) or
overhead obstructions which are not part of the scope of work and which may interfere with or make
more expensive the Services; (c) any pre-existing, unknown condition which prevents or makes more
expensive the performance of the Services; and (d) any hazardous waste or toxic materials encountered
at the Premises.

S. Default. Customer is in default if Customer does not pay the entire amount owed to GPC within forty-
five (45) days of the applicable invoice date. GPC’s waiver or past default will not waive any other default.
If default occurs, GPC, at its discretion may immediately terminate this Agreement, collect all past due
amounts (including late fees), stop performing Services, and seek any other available remedy.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, if Customer is past due on payments owed hereunder, then GPC has no
obligation to perform Services unless and until Customer is paid up in full.

PERFORMANCE BY GPC

6. Labor and Materials. GPC will provide the labor and materials necessary required to perform the
Services. Customer agrees that GPC may use its own employees or may contract with one or more
independent contractors to perform the Services.

L-TMR Agreement (ver. 1 - 05/2022})
Page 4

32



7. Permits. GPC will obtain all permits, permissions, and licenses necessary to perform the Services. GPC
will develop, implement, and maintain all work-zone traffic control plans that may be required by the
Customer for working on the Outdoor Lighting System. Customer will cooperate with GPCin securing any
necessary regulatory permit or approval and will provide assistance and information in its possession
required by GPC, Customer and any other person or authority concerning these permits or approvals. The
failure by either Party to secure any required regulatory permit, approval or property right after
reasonable effort will relieve GPC of its obligations under this Agreement.

8. Cooperation. The Parties will communicate regarding performance of this Agreement through the
representatives identified in Exhibit 1. The Parties agree to use their best efforts to coordinate and
cooperate in connection with all activities under this Agreement.

9. Services Warranty. GPC will perform the Services in a professional and workmanlike manner with
a reasonable degree of care, skill, and diligence. If the performance of any portion of the Services fails
to comply with these requirements, and the Customer gives written notice of such failure to the GPC
contact listed in Exhibit 1 not later than one (1) month following the completion of the affected Services
then, to the extent necessary to cure such failure, GPC shall repair, replace, or reperform, at its option,
the affected portion of the Services at no additional cost to the Customer, and this shall be Customer’s
sole remedy with respect to this warranty.

10. WARRANTY DISCLAIMER. EXCEPT FOR THE WARRANTY PROVIDED ABOVE IN SECTION 9, GPC
MAKES NO COVENANT, WARRANTY, OR REPRESENTATION OF ANY KIND (INCLUDING WARRANTY OF
FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE OR OF MERCHANTABILITY) REGARDING THE SERVICES (OR ANY
EQUIPMENT OR MATERIALS INCLUDED THEREIN). GPC SHALL HAVE NQ OBLIGATION OR
RESPONSIBILITY FOR CR WITH RESPECT TO ANY WARRANTY PROVIDED BY ANY THIRD PARTY SUPPLIER
OF ANY EQUIPMENT, PARTS OR OTHER MATERIALS PROVIDED PURSUANT TO THIS AGREEMENT.

11. Remedies and Damages. TO THE FULLEST EXTENT ALLOWED BY GEORGIA LAW, CUSTOMER WILL
NOT BE ENTITLED TO PAYMENT, DAMAGES, MONIES, OR COMPENSATION FROM GPC OF ANY KIND
WHATSOEVER FOR INDIRECT OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES (INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, LOSS
OF REVENUE, LOSS OF ACTUAL OR ANTICIPATED PROFITS, LOSS OF CAPITAL COSTS, LOSS OF REPUTATION,
OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES) IN CONNECTION WITH THE SERVICES OR THIS AGREEMENT OR BECAUSE OF
HINDRANCE OR DELAY FROM ANY CAUSE WHATSOEVER, WHETHER THE HINDRANCE OR DELAY IS
REASONABLE IS UNREASONABLE, FORESEEABLE OR UNFORESEEABLE, CONTEMPLATED OR NOT
CONTEMPLATED, AVOIDABLE OR UNAVOIDABLE. TO THE FULLEST EXTENT ALLOWED BY GEORGIA LAW,
THE PARTIES FURTHER AGREE THAT THE LIABILITY OF GPC UNDER ANY AND ALL CLAIMS ARISING OUT
OF OR CONNECTED IN ANY WAY WITH THIS AGREEMENT, ANY SERVICES OR EQUIPMENT FURNISHED
PURSUANT TO THIS AGREEMENT, OR THE SALE, DELIVERY, INSTALLATION OR USE THEREOF, WHETHER
BASED UPON BREACH OF CONTRACT, NEGLIGENCE OR ANY OTHER LEGAL THEORY, SHALL IN NO CASE
EXCEED, IN THE AGGREGATE, THE AMOUNT OF FEES PAID TO GPC FOR THE SERVICES IN THE TWELVE
{12) MONTHS PRIOR TO THE DATE OF THE APPLICABLE CLAIM,

12. Risk Allocation. Each Party is responsible for its own acts and the results of its acts.

COMPLIANCE

L TMR Agreement [ver. 1 -05/2022)
Page 5

33



13. Georgia Security, immigration, and Compliance Act (Applicable Only if Customer is a Georgia
Governmental Entity). Customer is a "public employer”" as defined by 0.C.G.A. 13-10-91 and this
Agreement is a contract for physical performance of services within the State of Georgia. Compliance with
the requirements of 0.C.G.A. 13-10-91 and Rule 300-10-1-.02 is a condition of this Agreement and is
mandatory. GPC's compliance with 0.C.G.A. 13-10-91 and Rule 300-10-1-.02 will be attested by execution
of the contractor's affidavit attached as Exhibit 2 and made a part of this Agreement. GPC agrees that, if
it employs or contracts with any subcontractor(s) in connection with this Agreement, GPC will secure from
each subcontractor attestation of the subcontractor's compliance with 0.C.G.A. 13-10-91 and Rule 300-
10-1-.02 by execution of a subcontractor's affidavit in the form attached as Exhibit 3. The affidavit will
become a part of the GPC/subcontractor agreement and GPC will maintain records of the affidavits for
inspection by customer.

14. Compliance with Equal Employment Opportunity Laws. GPC is an equal employment opportunity
employer and will not discriminate against any employee or applicant on the basis of age, color, disability,
gender, national origin, race, religion, sexual orientation, veteran status or any classification protected by
federal, state or local law. GPC is also a federal contractor under an Areawide Public Utilities Contract
with the General Services Administration of the United States Government and is committed to taking
affirmative action to employ and advance in employment qualified women, minorities, disabled
individuals, special disabled veterans, veterans of the Vietnam era, and other eligible veterans.

MISCELLANEOQUS

15. Authority. The execution of this Agreement and performance of Customer's obligations under this
Agreement have been duly authorized as required by Applicable Law and by Customer's rules, policies,
and procedures, and does not require the consent or approval of any person or entity other than those
which have been obtained (evidence of which will be provided to GPC upon request).

16. Term and Termination. The initial term of this Agreement, commencing on the Effective Date, is two
(2) years (the “Initial Term”). At the end of the Initial Term, this Agreement will automatically renew for
successive two (2) year terms (each, a “Renewal Term” and, together with the Initial Term, the “Term”),
unless a Party sends a written notice of non-renewal to the other Party at least [sixty {60) days] prior to
the end of the then-current Term. Notwithstanding anything in this Section 16 to the contrary, a Party
may terminate this Agreement for convenience upon at least 30 days' written notice to the other Party (a
“Termination for Convenience”). In the event of a Termination for Convenience, Customer will receive
Services up until the elected termination date and Customer will be responsible for paying all invoices
issued up until the termination date.

17. Governing Law and Jurisdiction. This Agreement will be governed by and construed in all respects
according to the laws of the State of Georgia. In the event of any dispute or claim related to this
Agreement, any lawsuit or other legal action or proceeding will be filed in either a state or federal court
sitting in the State of Georgia.

18. Notice. All notices permitted or required by this Agreement will be in writing and will be deemed
delivered upon (a) personal delivery; (b) the next occurring business day if deposited with a commercial
overnight delivery service; or (¢) the fourth business day after being deposited, postage prepaid, in the
United States Mail, registered or certified, return receipt requested. An email copy of the Notice must

L-TMR Agreement {ver. 1 = 05/2022)
Page 6

34



also be sent. Each Party will provide all notices to the other at the address(es) and email addresses
shown below or to any other address that a Party designates by written notice under this provision.

If to Customer:

Chairman

Joint Development Authority of
Jasper County, Morgan County,
Newton County and Walton County
300 E Church Street

Monroe, GA 30655

if to GPC:

Manager, Contract Management
Georgia Power Company

Bin 10080

241 Ralph McGill Blvd., N.E.
Atlanta, GA 30308-3374

With a Copy to:

Andrea P. Gray

Attorney for the JDA

300 E Church Street
Monroe, GA 30655
Andrea@andreapgray.com

With a Copy to:

Georgia Power Company
Gene Edwards

2294 Skelton Rd.
Gainesville, GA 30504
rgedward @southernco.com

19. Interpretation. This Agreement will be interpreted in accordance with, and governed in all respects
by, the laws of the State of Georgia. If any provision of this Agreement is ruled invalid or unenforceable,
that invalidity or unenforceability will not affect the validity or enforceability of this Agreement as a whole.
All captions in this Agreement are inserted for convenience only and are not to be used in interpreting
this Agreement.

20. Relationship of Parties. GPC is and will be an independent contractor to Customer. GPC will not be
considered an agent, partner, joint venturer, employee or representative of Customer. No affiliate of GPC
will have any liability whatsoever for any Party's performance, nonperformance or delay in performance
under this Agreement. Nothing in this Agreement will be construed to create any duty, obligation or
liability of GPC to any person or entity not a party to this Agreement. Customer will not assign or transfer
any of its rights or interests in or obligations under this Agreement or any document executed in
connection with this Agreement without the prior written consent of GPC.

21. Entire Agreement; Modifications. This Agreement, including all documents attached or incorporated
by reference, constitutes the entire understanding and agreement between the Parties relating to the
subject matter of this Agreement and supersedes any and all prior agreements, whether written or oral.
No waiver, amendment, change alteration or maodification of this Agreement will be binding unless made
in writing and signed by an authorized representative of each Party. The covenants expressed in this
Agreement, except as otherwise provided, accrue to the benefit of and will be binding upon the successors
and permitted assigns of the Parties. This Agreement may be executed in any number of duplicate
originals, each of which is an original, but all of which constitute the same executed document.
Notwithstanding the foregoing sentence, execution of this Agreement may be effected by signatures

L TMR Agreement {ver. 1~ 05/2022)
Page 7

35



submitted via facsimile or electronically scanned secured media in .pdf format and each signature so
submitted will be treated as an original.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, Customer and GPC have caused this Agreement to be executed by their
duly authorized representatives.

GEORGIA POWER COMPANY CUSTOMER

By: By:

Printed Name: Gene Edwards Printed Name:

Title: Project Manager Title:

Date: September 8, 2025 Date: "

L-TMR Agreement {ver. 1—05/2022)
Page 8

36



Exhibit 1

to Services Agreement for Total Maintenance and Repair

1. Outdoor Lighting Systems:

This Agreement relates to maintenance of the Outdoor Lighting System as located on the
Premises as shown / described below:

Customer Owned Lighting system located at i-20 & CR 249 / Old Mill Road in Walton & Morgan
Counties

GDOT Project Number: P.l. No. 0018361.

2. ROUTINE MAINTENANCE SCHEDULE:

Customer and GPC agree that GPC will provide the Routine Maintenance on a quarterly basis.
3. NUMBER OF LIGHTS:

Customer and GPC agree that the total number of lights upon which GPC will perform Services
is 51.

4. MONTHLY FEE FOR ROUTINE MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR WORK:
[ $1,020.00 ]
5. CONTACT PERSONS:

Communication between the Parties regarding performance of Routine Maintenance and Repair
Work under this Agreement will be directed between the following representatives:

GPC Representative: Customer Representative:
Name: Gene Edwards Name:

Title: Project Manager Title:

Georgia Power Company Joint Development Authority of

Jasper County, Morgan County,
Newton County and Walton County

2294 Skelton Rd. 300 E Church Street
Gainesville, GA 30504 Monroe, GA 30655
(404) 535-0374 () -

L-TMR Agreement {ver. 1 = 05/2022)
Page S

37



Exhibit 1 Acknowledged by GPC:

By:

Name: Gene Edwards

Title: Project Manager

Date: September 8, 2025

L-TMR Agreement {ver. 1 —05/2022)
Page 10

38

Exhibit 1 Acknowledged by Customer:

By:

Name:

Title:

Date:




	Binder2
	2025.9.23 Agenda
	2025.8.26 Regular Meeting Minutes
	JDA- public comment protocol Sept 2025
	quotes for demo

	08-25 JDA Financials
	Binder2
	Legal fee summary
	9 APG invoice 8.20.25 - 9.17.25 general
	Andrea P. Gray, LLC
	INVOICE
	00007-Joint Development Authority of Jasper, Morgan, Newton and Walton Counties
	General Legal Representation

	Detailed Statement of Account


	SSN APG invoice 8.29.25 - 9.17.25
	Andrea P. Gray, LLC
	INVOICE
	00243-Joint Development Authority of Jasper, Morgan, Newton and Walton Counties
	North: Stanton Springs North Matters

	Detailed Statement of Account


	SSS APG invoice 8.20.25 - 9.17.25
	Andrea P. Gray, LLC
	INVOICE
	00242-Joint Development Authority of Jasper, Morgan, Newton and Walton Counties
	South: Stanton Springs South Matters

	Detailed Statement of Account


	JDA Invoice- Road maintenance
	GA Power LTMR Agreement




